



SEND Policy (2020-21)

Contents

Contents	2
School Info	3
The SEND Aims of the School	3
Definition of Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND)	4
Special Education Provision	4
Staffing	4
Admissions	5
Inclusion	6
Identification, Assessment and Provision	6
Early Identification	6
SEND provision	7
The Range of Provision	7
Monitoring Pupil Progress	8
General learning Difficulties	8
Intervention	9
SENs (SEN Support)	10
Education and Health Care Plan (EHCP)	11
Roles	12
SEND Inset	13
Partnership with Parents	13
Complaints Procedure	14
SEND Policy Review	14

School Info

The Sydney Russell School Parsloes Avenue Dagenham Essex RM9 5QT

Tel. No. 0208 270 4333 Fax. No. 0208 270 4377

Email: office@sydney-r.bardaglea.org.uk Web address: www.sydneyrussellschool.com

Principal: Janis Davies

SENCO: Miss Debra Watling Assistant SENCo (Secondary): Miss Chloe Beard Assistant SENCo (Primary): Mrs Monwara Begum

Sydney Russell School values the abilities and achievements of all its pupils, and is committed to providing, for each pupil, the best possible environment for learning.

The SEND Aims of the School

- To ensure that all pupils have access to a broad and balanced curriculum.
- To provide a differentiated curriculum appropriate to the individual's needs and ability.
- To ensure the identification of all pupils requiring SEND provision as early as possible in their school career.
- To ensure that SEND pupils take as full a part as possible in all school activities.
- To ensure that parents of SEND pupils are kept fully informed of their child's progress and attainment.
- To ensure that SEND pupils are involved, where practicable, in decisions affecting their future SEND provision.
- To ensure that all staff understand their roles and responsibilities in providing for children with SEND, and that every teacher is a teacher of children with SEND. We strongly believe in Quality First Teaching to ensure that the various learning styles and needs of children are met.
- To liaise with outside agencies where possible. Agencies may include: Educational Psychology, Speech and Language Therapy (SALT), CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental health Services), School Nurse, Social Services, Joseph Clarke (Visual Impairment), Outreach Service for the Deaf, Occupational Therapy, Thrive.

We recognise that many pupils will have special needs at some time during their school life. In implementing this policy, we believe pupils will be helped to overcome their difficulties.

This Policy was developed by the SENCo in Consultation with the Senior Leadership Team and The Governors.

Whilst many factors contribute to the range of difficulties experienced by some children, we believe that much can be done to overcome them by parents, teachers and pupils working together.

Definition of Special Educational Needs and Disability

A child has special educational needs if he or she has learning difficulties that call for special educational provision to be made.

A child has learning difficulties if he or she:

- Has a significantly greater difficulty in learning then the majority of children of the same age;
- Has a disability which prevents or hinders the child from making use of educational facilities of a kind provided for children of the same age in other schools within the LEA;
- Is under compulsory school age, or would be if special educational provision was not made for the child.

Special Education Provision means (Children and Families Act 2014 Section 1.8)

A child or young person has SEND if they have a learning difficulty or disability which calls for special educational provision to be made for them. A child of compulsory school age or a young person has a learning difficulty or disability if they:

- (a) Have a significantly greater difficulty in learning than the majority of others of the same age; or
- (b) Have a disability which prevents or hinders them from making use of educational facilities of a kind generally provided for others of the same age in mainstream schools or mainstream post-16 institutions.

A child under compulsory school age has special educational needs if they fall within the definition at (a) or (b) above or would so do if special educational provision was not made for them (Clause 20 Children and Families Bill).

This is a broad definition covering children and young people from 0-25 years of age. Where a child or young person has a disability or health condition which requires special education provision to be made, they will be covered by the SEN definition.

Staffing

The SEND team at Sydney Russell School consists of:

SENCO: Miss D Watling Assistant SENCo (Secondary): Miss C Beard Assistant SENCo (Primary): Mrs M Begum Inclusion Administrator: Miss F Covell SEND Governor: Ms Bal Gill ARP Manager: Ms A Boenke LAC Coordinator: Mr R Hill

Learning Support Assistants:

Miss Gibson	Miss Watts
Miss Baines	Mrs Panova
Miss Ahmed	Mrs Champion
Miss Brooks	Mrs Odewale
Miss Wanjohi	Mrs Dickle
Miss Kaur	Miss Cazac
Miss Lines	Miss Mihai
Miss Stock	Miss Smith
Miss Boughen	Miss Rehman
Miss Daines	

English as an Additional language Coordinator (EAL): Soumia Rahali & Miss Begum

Social, Emotional & Mental Health Support Teaching Assistants:

Miss Bussell Mr Mitchell

Wellbeing Counsellors

Mr M Price Mr J Joseph

ARP (ASC) Learning Support Assistants:

Ms J Epson Ms L Williams

Admissions

The Governing Body believes that the admissions criteria should not discriminate against pupils with SEND and has due regard for the practice advocated in the Code of Practice, in that "With the right staff training, strategies and support in place the majority of children and young people with SEN are already successfully included in mainstream education. This is reflected in the general principle in law that children and young people with SEN should be educated in mainstream settings. That principle is supported by provisions safeguarding the interests of all children and young people and ensuring that the preferences of the child's parents or the young person for where they should be educated are met wherever possible." (CoP 2014 6.8)

Inclusion

This policy builds on our School Inclusion Policy, which recognises the entitlement of all pupils to a balanced, broadly based curriculum. Our SEND policy reinforces the need for teaching that is fully inclusive, encouraging Quality First teaching. The Governing Body will ensure that appropriate provision will be made for all pupils with SEND.

Identification, Assessment and Provision

At Sydney Russell School we have adopted a whole-school approach to our SEND policy and practice. Pupils identified as having SEND are, as far as is practicable, fully integrated into mainstream classes. Every effort is made to ensure that they have full access to the National Curriculum and are integrated into all aspects of the school.

The SEN Code of Practice 2014 makes it clear that all teachers are teachers of pupils with special educational needs.

All teachers are responsible for identifying pupils with SEND using the referral system and, in collaboration with the SENCo, will ensure that those pupils requiring different or additional support are identified at an early stage. Assessment is the process by which pupils with SEND can be identified. Whether or not a pupil is making progress is seen as a significant factor in considering the need for SEND provision.

Early Identification

Early identification of pupils with SEND is a priority. The school will use appropriate screening and assessment tools, and ascertain pupil progress through:

- Evidence obtained by the SEND referral system.
- Observations
- Their performance in N.C. judged against level descriptions.
- Pupil progress in relation to objectives in the National Literacy/Numeracy Strategies.
- Standardised screening or assessment tools.

Assessment tools utilised at Sydney Russell include:

- Screening/diagnostic tests such as the York Assessment for Dyslexia and Speech Link for SLCN.
- Baseline Assessments.
- Reports or observations.
- Records from feeder schools, etc.
- Information from parents.
- National Curriculum results.
- External exam results.
- Pupil portfolios.

SEND Provision

On entry to the school each child's attainment will be assessed in order to ensure continuity of learning from Primary school, or transference from another Secondary school. For pupils with identified SEND, the Principal, SENCo, and pastoral colleagues will:

- Use information from the Primary school to shape the pupil's curriculum and pastoral provision in the first few months.
- Identify the pupil's skills and note areas that require support.
- Ensure pupils have opportunities to demonstrate knowledge and understanding in subjects and in the pastoral programme.
- Involve pupils in planning/agreeing their own targets.
- Involve parents in a joint home-school learning approach.

The Range of Provision

The main methods of provision made by the School are:

- Full-time education in classes, with additional help and support by class teacher/ subject teachers through a differentiated curriculum.
- In-class support with adult assistance.
- Attendance at a specialised unit (ARP) within the School.
- Nurture support during break times.
- Wellbeing and counselling sessions.
- Support from specialists within class or as part of an Intervention.

Support for Autistic Students

We have a six place Autism Resource Provision (ARP) for our most vulnerable Autistic students. They each receive a curriculum delivered by a trained specialist and support team.

Students who have Autism but are not an ARP student are identified and supported as part of the ARP Outreach programme.

Wellbeing Support

Mentoring

Students are monitored to ensure that they are supported mentally and academically. A range of wellbeing support is provided from 1:1 discussions with LSA's, to peer mentoring or, in extreme cases, 1:1 sessions with a trained professional.

Counselling

The school works with two qualified counsellor's to provide support for students who require help or advice.

SEMH Support

We currently have two behaviour classes in the school. The groups consist of a small number of students who may need support with their behaviour which impacts their learning. These groups have a Behaviour Support Assistant in all lessons and their day is structured slightly differently. Their behaviour is monitored in each lesson, during form time and break times.

English as an Additional Language

Particular care is taken with pupils whose first language is not English. Teachers will closely follow their progress across the curriculum to ascertain whether any problems arise from uncertain command of English or from special educational needs.

It will be necessary to assess their proficiency in English before planning any additional support that might be required.

Students who are identified as EAL with receive some 1:1 support from the EAL Coordinator who will also provide a Profile of support for the student.

Monitoring Pupil Progress

Progress is the crucial factor in determining the need for additional support. Adequate progress is that which:

- Narrows the attainment gap between pupil and peers.
- Prevents the attainment gap widening.
- Is equivalent to that of peers starting from the same baseline, but less than the majority of peers.
- Equals or improves upon the pupil's previous rate of progress.
- Ensures full curricular access.
- Shows an improvement in self-help and social or personal skills.
- Shows improvements in the pupil's behaviour.
- Is likely to lead to Further Education, training, or employment.

Where teachers decide that a pupil's learning is unsatisfactory, the SENCo is the first to be consulted. The SENCo and teacher will review the approaches adopted. Where support additional to that of normal class provision is required, it will be provided. If, after further consideration, a more sustained level of support is needed, it would be provided through SENs (SEN Support). Where concerns remain despite sustained intervention the School will consider requesting an EHCP (Education, Health & Care Plan). Parents will be fully consulted at each stage. Each of these intervention programmes is detailed in appropriate sections of this Strategy. The School also recognises that parents have a right to request an EHCP.

General Learning Difficulties

The SEN Code of Practice defines adequate progress for pupils with General Learning Difficulties as that which:

- Narrows the attainment gap between pupil and peers.
- Prevents the attainment gap widening.
- Is on par with pupils starting from similar base line but less than most of peers.
- Equals or improves upon the pupil's previous rate of progress.
- Enjoys full curricular access.
- Is satisfactory to pupil and parents.
- Is likely to result in accreditation in F.E., training and/or employment.
- Is likely to result in usable levels of skills.

Teaching SEND pupils is a whole-school responsibility. The core of the teachers' work involves a continuous cycle of planning, teaching, assessment and reviewing taking into account the differences in pupils' abilities, aptitudes, and interests. Some pupils may need increased levels of provision and support.

The Code of Practice advocates a graduated response to meeting pupils' needs. When they are identified as having SEND, the school will intervene through SENs or managing an EHCP.

Intervention Initial Intervention

Interventions are those that are different from or additional to the normal differentiated curriculum. Intervention can be triggered through concern, supplemented by evidence that, despite receiving differentiated teaching, pupils:

- Make little or no progress.
- Demonstrate difficulty in developing literacy or numeracy skills.
- Show persistent emotional/behavioural difficulties which are not affected by behaviour management strategies.
- Have sensory/physical problems and make little progress despite the provision of specialist equipment.
- Experience communication and/or interaction problems and make little or no progress despite experiencing a differentiated curriculum.

If the School decides, after consultation with parents, that a pupil requires additional support to make progress, the SENCo, in collaboration with teachers, will support the assessment of the pupil and have an input in planning future support. The subject teacher, or Learning Support Assistant, will remain responsible for planning and delivering individualised programmes. Parents will be closely informed of the action and results.

Nature of Intervention

The SENCo in collaboration with the subject teacher will decide the action required to help the pupil progress. Based on the results of previous assessments, the actions might be:

- Deployment of additional staff to work with the pupil.
- Provision of alternative learning materials/special equipment.
- Group support.
- Provision of additional adult time in devising interventions and monitoring their effectiveness.
- Staff development/training to undertake more effective strategies.
- Access to LEA support services for advice on strategies, equipment, or staff training.

Individual Planning

At Sydney Russell School we do not use IEPs.

IEPs are not statutory. We operate a system of termly assessments on all our students. These TAs (3 per year) generate individual targets in each subject area. Every subject teacher is aware of the students with needs. They then accommodate current individual information with their assessment findings and modify targets accordingly. Teachers meet the needs of pupils by using Quality First Teaching and the Assess, Plan, Do, Review cycle.

SENs (SEN Support)

SENs is characterised by a sustained level of support and, where appropriate, the involvement of external services. Placement of a pupil at this level will be made by the SENCo after full consultation with parents at a planning meeting. External support services will advise on targets and provide specialist inputs to the support process.

SENs intervention will usually be triggered through continued concern, supplemented by evidence that, despite receiving differentiated teaching and a sustained level of support, a pupil:

- Still makes little or no progress in specific areas over a long period.
- Continues to work at National Curriculum levels considerably lower than expected for a child of similar age.
- Continues to experience difficulty in developing literacy/numeracy skills.
- Has emotional/behavioural problems that often substantially impede own learning or that of the group, and this may be despite having an individualised behavioural management programme.
- Has sensory or physical needs requiring additional specialist equipment or visits/advice from specialists.
- Has communication or interaction problems that impede the development of social relationships, thus presenting barriers to learning.

External support services will require access to pupils' records in order to understand the strategies employed to date, and the targets set and achieved. The specialist may be asked to provide further assessments and advice, and possibly work directly with the pupil. Parental consent will be sought for any additional information required. The resulting plan will incorporate specialist strategies. These may be implemented by the subject teacher but involve other adults. Where appropriate the School may well require direct intervention/support from a specialist/teacher.

Education and Health Care Plans (EHCP)

Request for EHCP

The School will request an EHCP from the LEA when, despite an individualised programme of sustained intervention at SENs, the child remains a significant cause for concern. An EHCP might also be requested by a parent or outside agency. The School will have the following information available:

- The action followed with respect to Intervention and SENs.
- The pupil's assessment data/NC Levels.
- Records and outcomes of regular reviews undertaken.
- Information on the pupil's health and relevant medical history.
- Literacy/Numeracy attainments.
- Other relevant assessments from specialists such as support teachers and educational psychologists.

- The views of parents.
- Where possible, the views of the child.
- Social Services/Educational Welfare Service reports.
- Any other involvement by professionals.

An EHCP will normally be provided where, after an Assessment, the LEA considers the child requires provision beyond that which the School can offer. However, the School recognises that a request for an EHCP does not inevitably lead to an EHCP.

An EHCP will include details of learning objectives for the child. These are used to develop targets that are:

- Matched to the longer-term objectives set in the EHCP.
- Shorter term targets, established through parental/pupil consultation and implemented in the classroom.
- Delivered by the subject teacher with appropriate additional support where specified.

Reviews of EHCPs

EHCPs must be reviewed annually. The LEA will inform the Principal at the beginning of each school term of the pupils requiring reviews. The SENCo will organise these reviews and invite:

- The child's parent.
- The child if appropriate.
- The relevant teacher.
- A representative of the LEA if required.
- Any other person the LEA considers appropriate.
- Any other person the SENCo considers appropriate.

The aim of the review will be to:

- Assess the pupil's progress in relation to personalised targets.
- Review the provision made for the pupil in the context of the National Curriculum and levels of attainment in basic literacy/numeracy and life skills.
- Consider the appropriateness of the existing EHCP in relation to the pupil's performance during the year, and whether to cease, continue, or amend it.
- Set new targets for the coming year.

Year 9 reviews will be significant in preparing for the pupil's transition to employment. Further Education, work-based training, Higher Education, and adult life. Beyond Year 9 the Transition Plan will be reviewed and involve the Connexions (Prospects) Service/Careers Service. The School recognises that the responsibility for such Transition Plans lies with these specialist services and the SENCo. With due regard for the time limits set out in the Code, the SENCo will write a report of the annual review meeting and send it, with any supporting

documentation, to the LEA. The School recognises the responsibility of the LEA in deciding whether to maintain, amend, or cease an EHCP.

The School recognises that where a pupil with an EHCP continues to attend after compulsory education, i.e. after age 16, the LEA may decide to maintain the EHCP until age 25.

The Role of the SENCo

The SENCo plays a crucial role in the School's SEND provision. This involves working with the Principal and Governing Body to determine the strategic development of the strategy. Other responsibilities include:

- Overseeing the day-to-day operation of the policy.
- Strategically leading the provision for pupils with SEND.
- Building a rapport with our SEND students.
- Liaising with and giving advice to fellow teachers.
- Managing Learning Support Assistants.
- Overseeing pupils' records.
- Overseeing reviews of provisions and interventions.
- Liaising with the parents.
- Arranging, and potentially leading, SEND training for all staff.
- Liaising with external agencies, LEA support services, Health and Social Services, Connexions (Prospects)/Careers Service and voluntary bodies.

The Role of the Governing Body

The Governing Body's responsibilities to pupils with SEND include:

- Ensuring that provision of a high standard is made for SEND pupils.
- Ensuring that a "responsible person" is identified to inform about the EHCP all those involved with teaching and supporting EHCP pupils.
- Ensuring that SEND pupils are fully involved in school activities.
- Having regard to the Code of Practice when carrying out these responsibilities.
- Being fully involved in developing and subsequently reviewing the SEND Policy.
- Reporting to parents on the school's SEND Policy including the allocation of resources from the School's devolved/delegated budget.

SEND Inset

All staff are encouraged to attend courses that help them to acquire the skills needed to work with SEND pupils.

Part of the SENCo's role in school-based inset is to develop awareness of resources and practical teaching procedures for use with SEND pupils.

Planned Inset for the SENCo and Members of the Support Team 2020-2021

Safeguarding ELSA Precision Teaching Social Stories Meeting the needs of Autistic Learners

As a routine part of staff development, inset requirements in SEND will be assessed. The Governing Body will undertake a similar review of training needs. LSAs requirements in supporting pupils' needs will be considered frequently. The School's inset needs will be included in the School Development Plan.

Partnership with Parents

Sydney Russell School firmly believes in developing a strong partnership with parents and that this will enable children and young people with SEND to achieve their potential. The School recognises that parents have a unique overview of the child's needs and how best to support them, and that this gives them a key role in the partnership.

"Where a pupil is receiving SEN support, schools should meet parents at least termly to set clear goals, discuss the activities and support that will help achieve them, review progress and identify the responsibilities of the parent, the pupil and the school." (CoP 6.5)

The School considers parents of SEND pupils as valued partners in the process. Depending on age and appropriateness, SEND pupils will also be encouraged to participate in the decision-making processes affecting them.

The School will make available, to all parents of pupils with SEND, details of the Local Offer.

Complaints Procedure

Initial contact should be made to the SENCo. Otherwise, The SEN Code of Practice outlines additional measures the LEA must set up for preventing and resolving disagreements. These will be explained to parents if required.

SEND Policy Review

The School considers the SEND policy document to be important and, in conjunction with the Governing Body, undertakes a thorough review of both policy and practice each year. The outcomes of this review are used to inform the School Development Plan.

Review July 2021